
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MEETING AGENDA 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 9, 2016 

Closed Session Meeting – 5:45 PM 

Regular Meeting - 6:30 PM 

 
City Hall – Beryl P. Robinson, Jr. Conference Room 

317 Broad Street, Nevada City, CA  95959 
 

 

MISSION STATEMENT  

The City of Nevada City is dedicated to preserving and enhancing its small town  

character and historical architecture while providing quality public services for our 

 current and future residents, businesses and visitors. 

 
 

 Evans Phelps, Mayor 

Reinette Senum, Council Member   Duane Strawser, Vice Mayor 

David Parker, Council Member   Valerie Moberg, Council Member 
 

The City Council welcomes you to its meetings which are scheduled at 6:30 PM on the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays of 

each month.  Your interest is encouraged and appreciated.  This meeting is recorded on DVD and is televised on 

local public television Channel 17.  Other special accommodations may be requested to the City Clerk 72 hours in 

advance of the meeting.  Please turn off all cell phones or similar devices.  Action may be taken on any agenda item.  

Agenda notices are available at City Hall.  Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after 

distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Hall at 317 Broad Street, Nevada 

City, CA during normal business hours. 

 
ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON ANY ITEM ON THIS 

AGENDA: After receiving recognition from the Mayor, give your name and address, and then your comments or 

questions. Please direct your remarks to the Councilmembers. In order that all interested parties have an opportunity 

to speak, please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. All citizens will be afforded an 

opportunity to speak, consistent with their Constitutional rights. Time limits shall be at the Mayor's discretion. IF 

YOU CHALLENGE the Council's decision on any matter in court, you will be limited to raising only those issues 

you or someone else raised at the meeting or Public Hearing described on this agenda, or in written correspondence 

delivered to the City Council at, or prior to, the meeting or Public Hearing.   

 

CLOSED SESSION MEETING – 5:45 PM 

 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

pursuant to Government Code §54956.9 – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to 

paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: 1 potential case. 

 

REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 

 

Roll Call:  Moberg, Parker, Senum, Vice Mayor Strawser, & Mayor Phelps 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 

PROCLAMATION:  Nisenan Heritage Day – November 12, 2016 

 

PRESENTATION:   

 

 
 

1



BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 

 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Under Government Code Section 54954.3, members of the public are entitled to address 

the City Council concerning any item within the Nevada City Council’s subject matter 

jurisdiction. Comments on items NOT ON THE AGENDA are welcome at this time.  

Normally, public comments are limited to no more than three minutes each.  Except for 

certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 

action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

 

2. COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

 

3. CONSENT ITEMS: 

 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are to be considered routine by the City Council 

and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed.  There will be no separate discussion of 

these items unless, before the City Council votes on the motion to adopt, members of the 

Council, City staff or the public request specific items to be removed from the Consent Calendar 

for separate discussion and action. 

 

A. Subject: Notice of Completion for the Washington County Water District Relief Hill 

Road Pressure Improvements 

Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2016-XX approving a Notice of Completion for 

the Relief Hill Road Pressure Improvement Project and authorize Mayor to sign. 

 

B. Subject:  Interim Staffing at Nevada City Water and Wastewater Treatment Plants 

Recommendation:  Pass a Motion approving Amendment No. 2 to City agreement 

with Fishers Wastewater Services in amount not to exceed $5,000 to provide interim 

management staffing for the City’s water and wastewater plants.  

 

4. APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES: 

 

A. City Council Meeting – October 26, 2016 

B. Special Council Meeting – October 18, 2016 

 

5. DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 

 

A. Subject:  Monthly Update on City Council Six-Month Strategic Objectives 

Recommendation: Receive and file. 

 

B. Subject:  Deer Creek Tribute Trail System Nomenclature 

Recommendation:  Approve trail and section names for areas of the Deer Creek 

Tribute Trail System that are within City limits and on City property. 

 

C. Subject:  November 8, 2016 Election Update (Oral Report) 

Recommendation: Receive and file. 

 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 

2



7. OLD BUSINESS: 

 

8. NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A. Subject:  Wild and Scenic Film Festival Street Closure Request 
Recommendation: Review and authorize Wild and Scenic Film Festival street 
closure request per application. 
 

B. Subject: Proposed Nevada City Hotel Investment Incentive Program 

Recommendation: Review and provide direction to the City Manager. 

 

C. Subject:  Presentation of Framework for Developing a Plan to Reduce Homelessness 
Recommendation:  Review and provide direction to the City Manager.   
 

D. Subject: Proposal for a Second Pilot Project for Overhead Lights on Lower 
Commercial Street 
Recommendation: Authorize Nevada City Chamber of Commerce to extend the 
Lower Commercial Street overhead lights with recommended conditions. 
 

9. CORRESPONDENCE: 

 

10. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 

11. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 

 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

Certification of Posting of Agenda 

I, Corey Shaver, Administrative Supervisor for the City of Nevada City, declare that the foregoing agenda for the 

November 9, 2016 Regular Meeting of the Nevada City City Council was posted November 3, 2016 at the office of 

the City of Nevada City (City Hall). The agenda is also posted on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov. 

 

Signed November 3, 2016 at Nevada City, California 

 

 

_________________________________, Corey Shaver, Administrative Supervisor 

 

 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 

City Council 

Long Range Calendar 

 

 

November 16, 2016  Special Council Meeting – Nevada Street Bridge Design Options 

November 30, 2016 Regular Council Meeting (Note Changed Date) 

December 14, 2016 Regular Council Meeting 

December 28, 2016 Meeting Canceled 

 

 

3

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


NOTE:  This list is for planning purposes; items may shift depending on timing and capacity of a meeting. 

 

NOTICE:  As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to 

remove or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally abusive 

while addressing said Council and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

4



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
November 9, 2016      www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TITLE:  Notice of Completion for the Washington County Water District Relief Hill 
Road Pressure Improvements 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Pass Resolution 2016-XX approving a Notice of Completion for 
the Relief Hill Road Pressure Improvement project and authorize Mayor to sign. 

CONTACT:  William J. Falconi, Consulting City Engineer 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  The City awarded a contract to Heart P Four, Grass 
Valley, CA for the Relief Hill Road Pressure Improvements for the Washington County 
Water District in Washington, CA, 95986. 
 
Staff is recommending the City Council pass a resolution approving a Notice of 
Completion for the project. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The project was funded with Proposition 84 funds. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 

 Resolution 2016-XX Notice of Completion and Authorize Mayor to Sign 
 Notice of Completion & Exhibit A 

5



6



7



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
November 9, 2016      www.nevadacityca.gov 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TITLE:   Interim Staffing at Nevada City Water and Wastewater Treatment Plants 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   Pass a Motion approving Amendment No. 2 to City agreement 
with Fishers Wastewater Services in amount not to exceed $5,000 to provide interim 
management staffing for the City’s water and wastewater plants. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION: Due to an unanticipated staffing vacancy at the City’s 
water and wastewater treatment plants that occurred September 28, 2016, the City 
required the immediate services of qualified Grade 3 operators to assist with 
management of these critical facilities and to comply with State regulations. On 
September 29, 2016, the City Manager entered into an agreement with Fishers 
Wastewater Services in an amount not to exceed $11,000 to provide temporary staffing 
assistance. The City Council ratified this agreement at their October 12 meeting. 
Amendment No. 1 extended interim staffing services through November 9. Proposed 
Amendment No. 2 in the amount of $5,000 will extend services through November 30.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: The City has operational, maintenance and 
reporting responsibilities to the State Water Resources Control Board and Department 
of Public Health. The addition of temporary staffing will facilitate the City’s ability to meet 
its responsibilities. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Fishers Wastewater Services bills at $80 per hour.  
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
 Amendment No. 2 

8



AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY AND 

FISHERS WASTEWATER SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

This Amendment No. 2 to City of Nevada City and Fishers Wastewater Agreement for water and 
wastewater services (“Amendment”) is made and entered into effective as of November 9, 2016 
(“Effective Date”) by and between the City of Nevada City (City) and Fishers Wastewater 
Services (Contractor). The City and Contractor are hereinafter referred to as “Parties”.  

 

1. Payment: Amendment No. 2 shall include an additional $5,000 to provide interim 
management staffing services through the extended agreement term below, bringing the 
total not to exceed amount of the agreement to $24,000.  

2. The “Contract Term” Section is hereby amended to read, in its entirety: 

Contract Term: The term of the agreement will commence September 29, 2016 and 
terminate November 30, 2016.  

 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this agreement has been amended by the parties hereto, upon the 
date first above written. 

 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY    CONTRACTOR 

Dept:        Contractor:       

By:        By:        

Printed Name:      Printed Name:      

Title:        Title:        

 

 

9



1 

[Type here] 
 

 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
DRAFT ACTION MINUTES 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF OCTOBER 26, 2016 
 

 
NOTE:  This meeting is available to view on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov – Go to Quick Links and 
Click on Agendas & Minutes and find the Archived Videos in the middle of the screen.  Select the meeting date and 
Click on Video to watch the meeting.  For website assistance, please contact Corey Shaver, Deputy City Clerk at 
(530) 265-2496, ext 133. 
 
-  City Council Meetings are available on DVD.  To order, contact City Hall - cost is $15.00 per DVD.   
- Closed Session Meetings are not recorded. 
 

 
 
CLOSED SESSION MEETING – 6:00 PM 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 a closed session is requested with negotiators City Manager Mark 
Prestwich, Assistant City Manager Catrina Olson, City Engineer Bryan McAlister, Assistant Consulting City Engineer Bill 
Falconi, and Consulting City Attorney Hal DeGraw to discuss price and terms of payment regarding possible purchase of 
real estate located in Pioneer Park at 425 Nimrod Street with owner, Susan Schreiber. 
 

Action:  Staff to proceed as directed. 
 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:  Present:  Moberg, Parker, Senum, Vice Mayor Strawser & Mayor Phelps (Mayor Phelps Absent) 
  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 
PROCLAMATION:  None  
 
PRESENTATION:  
 
The City Council received a presentation by Michael Heggarty, Director of Health and Human Services, County of Nevada 
regarding an overview of homeless services provided by the County. 
 
1.  BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR-PUBLIC COMMENT (Per Government Code Section 54954.3) 
 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov. 
 
2.  COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov for additional comments.  
 
3. CONSENT ITEMS: 

 

A. Subject:  Interim Staffing at Nevada City Water and Wastewater Treatment Plants 
Recommendation:  Pass a Motion approving Amendment No. 1 to City agreement with Fishers Wastewater 
Services in amount not to exceed $8,000 to provide interim management staffing for the City’s water and 
wastewater plants.  
 

B. Subject:  Award of Contract for Grove Street Sewer Improvements in Nevada City 
Recommendation:  Pass a Motion awarding a contract to Hansen Bros. Enterprises in the amount of 
$74,495 plus $10,000 contingencies for Grove Street Sewer Improvements and authorize the Mayor to sign. 
 

C. Subject:  Fire Activity Report – September 2016 
Recommendation: Receive and file. 
 

D. Subject:  Notice of Completion for 2016 Measure “S” Paving Projects 
Recommendation:  Pass Resolution 2016-47 approving a Notice of Completion for the construction of 2016 

10

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


2 

[Type here] 
 

 

Measure S paving and reconstruction and authorize Mayor to sign. 
 

E. Subject:  Regional Public Safety Training Center Maintenance Agreement with Sierra Joint Community 
College District, City of Grass Valley and Nevada County Consolidated Fire District 
Recommendation:  Pass a Motion authorizing the City Manager or designee to enter into an agreement with 
the Sierra Joint Community College District, City of Grass Valley and Nevada County Consolidated Fire 
District for repair of the fire pump at the Regional Public Safety Training Center. 
 

Action:  Motion by Senum, seconded by Parker to approve Consent Item 3A, 3C, and 3E as presented.  
(Approved 4 – 0; Phelps absent) 

 
Action:  Motion by Senum, seconded by Parker to Consent Item 3B as presented.  
(Approved 4 – 0; Phelps absent) 
 
Action:  Motion by Senum, seconded by Parker to Consent Item 3D as presented.  
(Approved 4 – 0; Phelps absent) 
 

4.  APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES: 
 

A. City Council Meeting – October 12, 2016 
 

Action:  Motion by Parker, seconded by Senum to approve October 12, 2016 Minutes as presented.  
(Approved 4 – 0; Phelps absent) 

 
5. DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 

 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

7. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A. Subject: Nevada City Historic Building Plaques Program 
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2016-48 1) Finding a historic building plaques program exempt from 
environmental review pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); 
and 2) establishing the Nevada City Historic Building Plaques Program and authorizing the Planning 
Commission to approve new historic plaque proposals within the city limits pursuant to program requirements. 

 
Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Parker to Pass Resolution 2016-48 1) Finding a historic building plaques 
program exempt from environmental review pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA); and 2) establishing the Nevada City Historic Building Plaques Program and authorizing the Planning 
Commission to approve new historic plaque proposals within the city limits pursuant to program requirements. 
 
(Approved 4 – 0; Phelps absent) 

 
9. CORRESPONDENCE:  
 
10. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  
 
11. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT:  
 
City Manager Prestwich announced the fifth of five Measure “C” Public Information Open Houses will be held Tuesday, 
November 1, 2016 from 6:30pm – 8:00pm at Seaman’s Lodge.  
 
12. ADJOURNMENT – 7:48 p.m. 
 
 

        _________________________________ 
        Evans Phelps, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 

11



1 

[Type here] 
 

 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 

DRAFT ACTION MINUTES 

 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

OCTOBER 18, 2016 

 

City Hall 

317 Broad Street 

Nevada City, CA 95959 

 

 

SPECIAL MEETING – 10:00 AM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:       
   
Council Members Present:    Moberg, Parker, Vice Mayor Strawser, Mayor Phelps  
Absent:    Senum 
 

 
CLOSED SESSION MEETING  

 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION pursuant to Government Code 
§54956.9 – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section 
54956.9: 1 potential case. 
 
Action:  The City Attorney reported out of from closed session that the Council approved a separation agreement 
with Mr. Howard Schmitz. A motion to approve was made by Vice Mayor Strawser and seconded by Council 
member Moberg. The vote was 4-0 with ayes from Mayor Phelps, Vice Mayor Strawser, and Council members 
Parker and Moberg. Council member Senum was absent. 
 

 
Adjournment – 10:30 a.m. 

 

 

 
        _________________________________ 
        Evans Phelps, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 

12



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL   City of Nevada City 

        317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 

November 9, 2016      www.nevadacityca.gov 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

TITLE:  Monthly Update on City Council Six-Month Strategic Objectives 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file. 
 

CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 

 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  On August 25, 2016, the City Council, Planning 
Commission and executive staff held a planning retreat to discuss City goals. New 
three-year goals and six-month strategic objectives to guide the organization were 
reviewed by the City Council on September 14. 
 
Consistent with the City Council’s direction, a monthly status report has been prepared 
to provide an update on attainment of the Council’s six-month objectives. The attached 
grid outlines the status of each objective and, where appropriate, includes comments 
to provide additional information about select objectives. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  None. 
 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Not applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENT:    

  

 6-Month Strategic Objectives Grid 

 

 

13



 A 

N E V A D A  C I T Y  

SIX-MONTH STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES  
 

A u g u s t  2 5 ,  2 0 1 6  –  F e b r u a r y  1 5 ,  2 0 1 7  

 
 

 

THREE-YEAR GOAL: Enhance and maintain the infrastructure and facilities 

 

 
WHEN 

 
WHO 

 
WHAT 

 
STATUS 

 

 
COMMENTS 

 

   DONE ON 
TARGET 

REVISED  

1. 
By February 15, 
2017 

 
Planning Director and 
Planning Commissioner 
Skyler Moon 

 
Identify rules and regulations (e.g., streets, trees, sidewalks) 
for the public and how to simplify them to be more user friendly 
for citizens and merchants and present recommendations for 
action to the Planning Commission and City Council. 
 

 
 

 
 

X 

 
 

 
 

2. 
By February 15, 
2017 

 
Public Works 
Superintendent and City 
Engineer (co-leads) and 
Council Member Duane 
Strawser  
 

 
Identify opportunities and recommend to the City Manager and 
City Council for action a plan to improve pedestrian friendly 
environments. 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

X 

 
 

 
 

3. 
By February 15, 
2017 

 
Council Member Duane 
Strawser, Public Works 
Superintendent and City 
Engineer 
 

 
Develop draft maps and schematics and hold community 
workshops to obtain feedback regarding improved citywide 
public parking options and present the results to the Planning 
Commission, City Manager and City Council. 
 
 

 
 

 
 

X 

 
 

 
 

4. 
By February 15, 
2017, contingent 
upon funding  

 
City Engineer 

 
Procure contractors for reconstruction of the swimming pool 
shell. 
 
 

 
 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

5. 
By February 15, 
2017 

 
Assistant City Manager 
(lead), Public Works 
Superintendent and City 
Engineer, with input 
from the Department 
Heads 
 

 
Develop and present to the City Council for action an updated 
Capital Improvement Plan. 
 
 

 
 

 
 

X 

 
 

 
 

14



 B 

 
 

THREE-YEAR GOAL: Improve and manage fiscal stability and sustainability 
 

 
WHEN 

 
WHO 

 
WHAT 

 
STATUS 

 

 
COMMENTS 

 

   DONE ON 
TARGET 

REVISED  

1. 
By November 8, 
2016 
 

 
Mayor Evans Phelps, 
working with the City 
Manager and Executive 
Team 

 
Provide public information at Public Safety Open Houses 
related to Measure C. 
 
 
 

 
X 

 
 
 

 
 

 
Five Measure C Open 
Houses were held to 
provide public information 
about the November 8 ballot 
measure. 

2. 
By January 15, 
2017 and quarterly 
thereafter 
 

 
Assistant City Manager and 
City Engineer 

 
Report to the City Council the steps to complete a full 
AB1600 study tied to the citywide Capital Improvement 
Plan. 

 
 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

3. 
By February 1, 
2017 
 

 
City Manager 

 
Present to the City Council a Hotel Incentive Program for 
consideration. 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

 
Proposal presented at 
November 9 Council 
Meeting. 
 

4. 
By February 15, 
2017 
 
 

 
Assistant City Manager, in 
consultation with the 
Department Directors 

 
Recommend to the City Council for consideration an 
updated citywide fee structure for non-Enterprise 
services. 

 
 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

 

15



 C 

 
 

THREE-YEAR GOAL: Reduce homelessness and transient population 
 

 
WHEN 

 
WHO 

 
WHAT 

 
STATUS 

 

 
COMMENTS 

 

   DONE ON 
TARGET 

REVISED  

1. 
At the October 26, 
2016 City Council 
meeting 
 

 
City Planner 

 
Coordinate a County Social Services representative presentation 
to the City Council regarding a County Homeless Needs 
Assessment, including mental health needs and services. 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

 
Michael Heggarty, Nevada 
County Director of Health & 
Human Services presented at 
the October 26 Council 
Meeting. 

2. 
At the November 
9, 2016 City 
Council meeting 

 
Council Members 
Duane Strawser and 
Reinette Senum, 
working with the 
Police Chief and with 
input from the 
homeless and non-
profit organizations at 
a town hall meeting 
 

 
Develop a plan to reduce homelessness and present to the City 
Council. 
 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

 
Framework to develop plan to 
reduce homelessness 
presented at November 9 
Council Meeting. 

3. 
By December 15, 
2016 
 

 
City Council (Reinette 
Senum-lead) 
 

 
Consider establishment of a Homeless Advocacy Group to work 
with other groups and to lobby the State for programs and 
funding to reduce homelessness. 
 

 
 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

4. 
By February 15, 
2017 
 

 
City Planner (lead), 
Council Member 
Reinette Senum and 
Police Chief 
 

 
Identify potential parameters (e.g., size, costs, zoning, building 
permits) for a Tiny House Pilot Program and present 
recommendations/options to the City Council for action. 

 
 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

5. 
By February 15, 
2017 

 
Police Chief and 
Council Member 
Reinette Senum, 
working with Cal 
Growers 
 

 
Identify resources (e.g., quality of life issues, lodging) and the 
enforcement processes for the transient population and update 
and distribute the information fliers to transients and businesses. 
 

 
 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

 

16



 D 

 
 

THREE-YEAR GOAL: Increase community awareness and involvement 

 

 
WHEN 

 
WHO 

 
WHAT 

 
STATUS 

 

 
COMMENTS 

 

   DONE ON 
TARGET 

REVISED  

1. 
Beginning in 
October 2016 
and bimonthly 
thereafter 
 

 
Each Department 
Head 

 
Present to the City Manager and Supervisor of Parks and Recreation a 
list of their department’s activities for possible inclusion in the City 
newsletter (included in the water bill) and the City website to inform the 
public about the activities of the City. 

 
 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

2. 
By October 15, 
2016 
 

 
Each Department 
Head 

 
Identify and present to the City Manager and City Council for direction 
regarding implementation by volunteers at least one area where 
volunteers can help the City and what they are needed to do. 
 

 
X 

 
 

 
 

 
Presentation at October 12, 
2016 meeting. 

3. 
By December 15, 
2016 

 
City Manager 
and Management 
Team 
 

 
Prioritize volunteer areas for implementation, distribute the activities to 
appropriate departments or organizations and identify options for 
development of a Volunteer Program. 
 

 
 

 
X 

 
 

 

4. 
By February 15, 
2017 

 
City Manager 
and Council 
Member David 
Parker 
 

 
Develop and present to the City Council a Community Awareness 
Program to increase awareness and the number of volunteers for the 
City. 
 

 
 

 
X 

 
 

 
Initial planning meetings held.  

 

17



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
November 9, 2016      www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TITLE:  Deer Creek Tribute Trail System Nomenclature 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve trail and section names for areas of the Deer Creek 
Tribute Trail System that are within City limits and on City property. 
 
CONTACT:  Dawn Zydonis, Parks & Recreation Supervisor 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  The concept of the Deer Creek Tribute Trail came 
into existence over 17 years ago.  With input, hard work and cooperation between many 
non-profit organizations, neighborhood associations, the County and City, the Deer 
Creek Tribute Trail System has become a fantastic recreational trail used by many 
people in our community. 
 
Because it has been in process for such a long time and some of the trail segments 
were in existence prior to formalizing the Tribute Trail, there has been some confusion 
about where the trail actually is and how much of the trail is the Tribute Trail and how to 
get to the trail can be a mystery.  There are several maps that are being used to help 
the public understand where the trail is, where to park to access the trail, etc.  In 
addition to the confusion by the public, even those who have been involved in the 
construction of the trail have had difficulty describing a certain section of trail during 
conversations about where to post signs and how to create better access, etc.  These 
difficulties and many conversations led to the creation of a nomenclature for the Tribute 
Trail and its many parts. 
 
The group who discussed this nomenclature and came to an agreement about the 
proposed naming are those involved in the Tribute Trail Forum.  This forum was a grant 
requirement for the Sierra Fund who was the lead agency in the construction of parts of 
the trail.  This forum consists of neighbors, City staff, and staff from the many non-profit 
organizations who have been involved in the creation and construction of the Tribute 
Trail; including Sierra Fund, Sierra Streams Institute, American Rivers, Bear Yuba Land 
Trust, Nevada City Rancheria and Forest Trails Alliance.  The forum is not a formal 
group, but meets to discuss issues such as parking, illegal camping, signage and other 
factors that affect the trail.  There is no funding for this group, but they make efforts to 
find ways to maintain the trail and address issues.   
 
The Nomenclature was a big item for this group to take on.  It was discussed at many 
meetings.  The Forum is asking the City Council to approve the naming of the sections 
of the Deer Creek Tribute Trail System that are on City property and within City limits.  
There are 3 main focal points to this nomenclature 

18

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


1. The system name  
2. The section names  
3. The trail names 

 
The recommended nomenclature information is attached. The goals of creating this 
nomenclature are to have a proper, correct map that can be presented to the public.  
The ideal map would also note parking, bathrooms and other helpful tips for the public.  
In addition, communication of this new nomenclature with safety personnel could be 
helpful in the event of emergencies along the trail.   
 
There is 700 feet of unimproved trail that is located in the Nisenan Bridge Section.    
This piece of trail is shown on the map, but not named. This trail is scheduled to be 
improved this winter.  Since those improvement will be taking place, that trail should be 
named as well.  City Staff anticipates the forum will designate this trail the Providence 
Mine Trail – referring to the history of the area.  If the forum decides on a different name 
staff will inform the City Council of that suggested naming.   
 
It should be noted that if the City Council approves the Nomenclatures, this will not 
immediately lead to the production of trail maps to be delivered to the public.  The map 
that is provided with this report is a great tool as a reference point, but is not 100% 
accurate in trail location.  There is no funding at this time for mapping services or 
production of brochures. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: None 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 DRAFT Recommended Nomenclature 
 DRAFT Nomenclature Reference Map 

 

19



DRAFT updated 10.17.16 

Recommended Nomenclature for the 

DEER CREEK TRIBUTE TRAIL SYSTEM 

  
 
With the addition of the new Angkula Seo Suspension Bridge over Deer Creek, a single large trail system 

has been created from trails located both north and south of Deer Creek. This has brought a challenge – to 

come up with an agreed way of describing this system and its trails that can be readily understood by the 

public and emergency response personnel. 
 

The purpose of this document is to provide clarity and consistency in naming sections and segments 

within the larger Deer Creek Tribute Trail System. The naming of trail segments is a further enhancement 

for trail usability and identifying specific locations for emergency response purposes in case of a major 

fire or life threatening incident.  
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This document had been generated after many months of collaboration among the Tribute Trail Forum 

members, a group comprised of representatives from over a dozen stakeholder groups who meet quarterly 

to discuss relevant projects, issues and concerns related to the Deer Creek Tribute Trail System. 
  
On November 19th, 2015, this Forum decided to come up with an agreed nomenclature for the trail 

system, and below you will find a summary of our recommendations, with an attached reference map. 

This document will be circulated to appropriate emergency response organizations and agencies to 

incorporate additional safety elements such as mile markers, and gate access for fires safety etc.  
  
 
 

RECCOMENDED NOMENCLATURE: 
  
1.     Adopt the name "Deer Creek Tribute Trail System" for the 

whole system and use the existing DCTT logo, clearly marked 

on both maps and on the ground. 

 

 

"If possible, all trail segments in the system should be designated by some kind of mutual 

agreement of concerned groups and agencies in the process of adopting a nomenclature 

and signage for the entire trail system. And once there is an agreed nomenclature, it 

should be promoted and encouraged into general use by signs and trail literature that are 

consistent with the adopted naming system. A well designed brochure for the whole trail 

system (mirrored by descriptions used on web sites) would be an excellent way to help 

the trail-using public learn and use the agreed naming system." - Greg Archbald 

20



DRAFT updated 10.17.16 

2.     Adopt the following trail Section names to assist trail users in identifying general areas or sections 

within the Deer Creek Tribute Trail System (please see map for reference): 

  
         1)  Historic Downtown Section 
 2)  Nisenan Bridge Section 
 3)  Newtown Canal Section 
 4)  Chinese Bridge Section 
  
3.     Within each of these four sections, lie trail segments. Trail segments are shown on the attached map 

using trail names (foot paths) or street names (roads), with a black dot to indicate hard boundaries or 

segment start and end points. Please note: Segments of the trail that double as roads simply utilize the 

existing street name. Roads are identified in the attached map in red font, whereas foot paths are 

identified with orange font. 
  
1)     Historic Downtown Section 
   1a)  Incorporate Miners Trail into the DCTT System (in green on map) and maintain existing 

name “Miners Trail” 
   1b)  Trail from Nimrod Street at Pioneer Park to the Stone House should maintain the existing 

name "Little Deer Creek Trail"   
    
2)     Nisenan Bridge Section 
   2a)  Rather than naming multiple segments within this section, both the north and south side of 

Deer Creek should be named the “Nisenan Trail” and new signage along the trail should label mileage 

distance to places of interest such as “loop”, “upper”, “lower”, “bridge”, “Nevada City” or to a road name 

such as “Jordan Street” or “Providence Mine Road.” As there are other connecting trails on private 

property near Providence Mine road, signage should also be in place indicating that “you are now leaving 

the DCTT system.” 
   2b)  The short trail connecting Cross St and S Pine Street should maintain the existing name 

“Tribulation Trail” 
  
3)     Newtown Canal Section 
   3a)  Trail that runs along the NID ditch in the Newtown Canal Section, should be named the 

“Tribute Trail.”  This segment is the backbone or the spine of the whole system and extends all the way to 

Old Downieville Hwy in Nevada City.  This trail segment is mostly a foot path but occasional doubles as 

a road on Champion Mine Rd and also briefly along a NID road in the Nisenan Bridge Section.  

 3b)  Technically, there is no public access on the land parcel closest to Morning Star Ln, so until 

an easement is granted, the Tribute Trail segment officially ends (or starts) at the 86 acre parcel indicated 

with a black dot on the attached map. This forum plans to work with the land owners to incorporate this 

parcel into the trail system. 
  
4)     Chinese Bridge Section 
   4a)  Trail from the junction off the “Tribute Trail” leading down to the Chinese Bridge should be 

named “Chinese Bridge Trail” and the loop around BLM land should have signs on the ground which 

indicating the mile length of the loop.   

21



22



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL   City of Nevada City 

        317 Broad Street 
        Nevada City CA 95959 
        www.nevadacityca.gov 
November 9, 2016 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Wild and Scenic Film Festival Street Closure Request  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review and authorize Wild and Scenic Film Festival 
street closure request per application. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  The City received a Street Closure request to 
close Commercial Street between Main Street and N. Pine Street from Friday, 
January 13 at 9:00 a.m. through Sunday, January 15, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. to 
facilitate the Wild and Scenic Film Festival. Notice of their film festival’s street 
closure request has been provided to adjacent properties. 
 
The proposed daily event hours are from 9:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. The application 
also requests permission to hang a banner above Broad Street, with building 
owner permission, promoting the festival from December 31 – January 17. 
Additionally, the application includes a request to permit two food trucks with food 
sales Friday evening through Sunday afternoon in the Miners Foundry parking lot 
and on the LeeAnn Brook Art Gallery parcel, and waiver of City fees. 
  
A summary of the specific event characteristics and recommended staff 
conditions are included in the application packet. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENT:   
 

 Street Closure/Special Event Application 
 

23

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



 

REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 

         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City CA 95959 
         www.nevadacityca.gov 
November 9, 2016 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Proposed Nevada City Hotel Investment Incentive Program  

RECOMMENDATION:  Review and provide direction to the City Manager. 

CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 

BACKGROUND:   

Every successful hotel establishment periodically renovates to increase guest satisfaction 
and address aging or deteriorating assets. Needed safety improvements, competition, 
and improving visitor convenience are also factors that frequently drive hotel renovation 
projects.  

A number of California municipalities have incentivized investment in their local hotels (or 
development of hotel rooms) concluding that incentive programs supporting renovation 
of a sufficient scale can drive significant additional tax revenues to the city (e.g. hotel tax, 
property tax, sales tax) and further improve their community’s guest lodging amenities 
(see Exhibit A).  

DISCUSSION:   

One of the City Council’s six-month objectives includes direction to the City Manager to 
develop a recommendation for a Hotel Incentive Program. The purpose of such a program 
is multi-fold:  

 Provide attractive and desirable visitor serving facilities and experiences;  
 Encourage continued investment in lodging facilities; 
 Generate net increased transient occupancy tax revenues to provide core 

municipal services; and 
 Promote and enhance Nevada City’s economy. 

Staff has reviewed Hotel Incentive Programs in other communities and considered the 
needs of the City’s five privately-owned hotel properties that range from 9 rooms to 44 
rooms. Each property is distinct in its own life cycle, market position, and renovation 
needs.  

As a result, City staff has developed a proposed Hotel Renovation Incentive Program to 
encourage a significant investment, if needed and desired, for each facility. Given the age 
of local facilities and their unique attributes, the program establishes aggressive minimum 
investment requirements for hotel rooms and each facility’s “shell/property” rather than a 
specified “post-project” desired hotel rating.  

 

37

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


 

Proposal 

It is recommended the program consist of a 20-year incentivized cost-share methodology 
on the growth in the Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) revenues for each property. The 
revenue base would be established by calculating the average of the prior three-year 
average TOT annual revenue. It is recommended the base be tied to a consumer price 
index so that the City’s base revenue is not impacted by this program over the cost-
sharing term. The proposed methodology is intended to aggressively offset the private 
investment and return 95% of the TOT revenue growth to the property owner for the first 
ten years, 75% over years 11-15 and 50% over years 16-20. This translates to an average 
cost-share of 70% over the term. It is also recommended the program automatically 
sunset in five years unless extended by the City Council. 

Program Eligibility 

 Minimum “Furniture, Fixture and Equipment” costs of not less than $10,000 per 
guestroom. 

 Minimum “Shell/Property Improvements” averaging at least $15,000 per 
guestroom (expenses related to expansion of hotel rooms would be considered 
eligible expenses). 

 Obligation to comply with Prevailing Wage requirements for property 
improvements. 

 Use good faith efforts to hire local residents and contract with local 
subcontractors, suppliers and other businesses for property improvements. 

The City currently has five hotels that could qualify for the program. 

Proposed Application Procedures 

The following application procedures are recommended for hotel operators desiring to 
participate in the Hotel Investment Incentive Program: 

1. Submit an incentive program application to the City Manager;  
2. Provide a business plan documenting planned improvements to the hotel 

property, including an estimate of revenues and expenditures for operation of the 
hotel through the program’s cost-sharing term; and 

3. Execute and record an operating covenant approved by the City Council 
regarding continuing use of the hotel, maintenance of the property, non-
discrimination, any other provisions the City Council may reasonably determine 
are necessary or appropriate to preserve the goals of the program. 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Not applicable. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  It is anticipated this program has the potential to generate a 
minimum of $1 million in additional City TOT revenue over the next 20 years to support 
core City services, as well as private investment that will yield additional jobs/services. It 
is anticipated the program may also accelerate increases in City property and sales tax 
revenues.  

ATTACHMENT:  Exhibit A - Hotel Incentive Programs in Other California Communities  

38



Agency TOT Rebate Duration Rebate Cap Notes

Palm Springs 50%
10 years or until $12.5 million is 
received, whichever occurs first

$12.5 million

Requires investment of 
$10,000 per room + no less 
than $500,000 in ancillary 

improvements
Up to 95% years 1‐10
Up to 75% years 11‐15

* Only rebated when 11% return 
is not achieved
75% years 1‐10
50% years 11‐15

33% years 16+ until cap

Anaheim 50‐70% 20 years None
Requires investment of 

$30,000 per room + no less 
than $100,000/room in 
ancillary improvements

50% (existing) 10 years
70% (new) 15 years

50% (existing)
75% (new)

Rancho Palos Verdes 80% Until cap is reached $8.2 million

Requires investment of 
$7,500 per room + no less 
than $500,000 in ancillary 

improvements

Cathedral City

Santa Barbara County None

10 years or longer if City Council 
desires 

None

La Quinta 15 years None

Placerville At least 15 $3.6 million

Exhibit A - Hotel Incentive Programs in Other California Communities

39



1 

REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 

         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City CA 95959 
         www.nevadacityca.gov 
November 9, 2016 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

TITLE:  Presentation of Framework for Developing a Plan to Reduce 
Homelessness  

RECOMMENDATION:  Review and provide direction to the City Manager. 

CONTACT:  Vice Mayor Duane Strawser; Council Member Reinette Senum; Tim Foley, 
Police Chief 

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION: Pursuant to the City’s six month strategic objectives, 
Vice Mayor Strawser and Council Member Senum, working with Police Chief Tim Foley, 
have been tasked with presenting the City Council with a plan to reduce homelessness 
at their November 9, 2016 meeting. 

The working group acknowledges the City cannot resolve homelessness on its own. 
While there is not a simple solution to reducing homelessness due to its complex 
nature, the working group has developed a three-phase framework to identify, organize 
and implement strategies that will complement the region-wide efforts required of such 
an issue.  

PHASE 1 - RESEARCH 

The Research Phase will consist of identifying the scope of the issue, goals, available 
local assets and resources, interviews with homeless individuals, and how the City may 
work with key stakeholders to reduce homelessness. Early efforts have already begun 
including a field trip to the Mary Isaak Center in Petaluma and a City Council 
presentation of homeless services provided by Nevada County. The working group will 
convene a Townhall Meeting in early 2017 to receive community feedback on draft 
guiding principles (below) and potential strategies. It is anticipated the Research Phase 
will require at least three months to complete. Attached to this report are a series of 
questions that have been developed to guide the Research phase and help inform the 
development of strategies. 

Guiding Principles (Draft) 

1. Respect - The personal safety, dignity, and property rights of neighborhood 
residents, homeless individuals, business owners and their employees should be 
respected. 
 

2. Partnership – Because homelessness is a county-wide challenge, Nevada City 
shall work in partnership with regional partners, service providers, homeless 

40

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


2 

individuals, neighborhoods, faith-based organizations, and the business 
community to identify county-wide coordinated solutions. 
 

3. Prevention – Integrated prevention strategies will guide efforts to prevent those 
at-risk of homelessness from becoming homeless in the first place. 
 

4. Accountability - All residents, including the homeless, should be accountable for 
their actions in order to preserve the quality of life for the entire community. 
 

PHASE 2 – ORGANIZATION 

The Organization Phase will consist of identifying themes and best practices that 
emerge from the Research Phase. It is anticipated this phase will result in strategies 
that balance prevention, outreach and enforcement. For example, prevention activities 
may include strategies to increase the supply of emergency and affordable housing, and 
the distribution of information to homeless and at-risk of homelessness individuals. 
Outreach strategies may include street and homeless camp teams, comprehensive 
services location(s), and coordinated entry points/portals that reach out to at-risk 
individuals. It is anticipated this phase will require at least three months to complete. 

PHASE 3 – IMPLEMENTATION  

The Implementation Phase will be characterized by development and implementation of 
a written strategy to guide the City’s efforts to reduce homelessness.  

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Not applicable. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not applicable. 

ATTACHMENTS:   
 

 DRAFT Framework for Developing a Plan to Reduce Homelessness – Research 
Phase 

41



City of Nevada City 

Framework for Developing a Plan to Reduce Homelessness 

(DRAFT) 

 

RESEARCH PHASE  

a. What is the scope of the issue? 

i. Number of homeless 

ii. Transitory population 

iii. Trimmigrant impact 

iv. Mental health and substance abuse issues 

v. Criminal violations 

vi. Illegal camping/debris/environmental impacts 

vii. Cold weather shelter 

b. What are the goals? 

c. What are our local assets? 

i. Programs 

ii. Funding sources 

iii. Property available 

iv. Volunteers 

d. What local, state and federal resources are available? 

i. Existing funding sources 

ii. Grants 

iii. Programs 

e. Determine current local programs in operation (e.g. governmental and non-profit) 

i. Identify pros and cons 

ii. How will they fit into the plan? 

f. What are the lessons learned available from model programs, operations and best 

practices? 

g. How do we deal with resistive and non-compliant individuals? 

h. Who are the key stakeholders? How can their resources be brought together? 

i. How can we work with governmental partners and other service providers to enhance 

coordination/address challenges? 

j. What ideas and strategies do homeless individuals and citizens recommend? 

k. What will be the keys/metrics to achieve and evaluate progress? 

 

42



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL 
 
November 9, 2016  

City of Nevada City 
317 Broad Street 
Nevada City, CA  95959 
www.nevadacityca.gov 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

TITLE:  Proposal for a Second Pilot Project for Overhead Lights on Lower 
Commercial Street 
  
RECOMMENDATION:  Authorize Nevada City Chamber of Commerce to extend the 
Lower Commercial Street overhead lights with recommended conditions. 
 

CONTACT:  Amy Wolfson, City Planner 

 

BACKGROUND: In August 2015, the City Council authorized the Chamber of 
Commerce to install overhead lighting over lower Commercial Street as a year-long 
pilot project. The initial trial period was intended to inform the Chamber as to the hours 
the lights should operate, the appropriate level of brightness, and the appropriate 
height level.  At the close of the initial year-long pilot program staff directed the 
Chamber to turn off the lights and submit a permanent lighting program.  
 
The City has received a letter from the Chamber of Commerce, dated October 7, 2016, 
requesting that Council authorize a second year-long pilot program in order to allow 
time to ascertain information about the stability of the LED lights they are currently 
proposing. The pilot term will also provide the Council and the community an 
opportunity to evaluate the brightness and hue of the lights before selecting a 
permanent fixture.  
 
The Nevada City Fire Department has expressed concern over the safety of the 
previous temporary installation which utilized extension cords to supply the power.   
Staff is therefore recommending that if a second pilot program is authorized, it is done 
so with a condition that an exterior power outlet be legally installed and permitted by 
the Building Department. Waste Management has also indicated that they require the 
lights to be a minimum of 16-feet above the street in order to accommodate their 
vehicles. The Chamber’s proposal includes a commitment to hard wire the lights and 
hang them at a height that complies with Waste Management’s height requirements.  
 
RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS:  

1. Prior to installation of the temporary lights for a second year-long pilot program, 
the Chamber of Commerce shall obtain an electrical permit from the Nevada 
County Building Department. 

 
2. Prior to installation of the temporary lights for a second year-long pilot program, 

provide the following information to staff: 
a. A list of specific addresses where lights will physically be attached 
b. A letter of authorization from building owner(s) 
c. A financial responsibility plan that describes the manner in which lighting 

maintenance and bill payment is financed.  
 

43



3. At the end of the second year-long pilot program, the Nevada City Chamber of 
Commerce shall submit a permanent lighting proposal that includes the 
following information:  

a. Dimmer and timer capability of the proposed fixtures 
b. An evaluation of the lighting character in terms of color and brightness 
c. An evaluation of its compatibility with historic district perimeter lighting 
d. An evaluation of a solar energy system to supply power to the lights 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:   
The CEQA Guidelines for Categorical Exemption §15306 consists of data collection 
and research which do not result in a serious or major disturbance to an environmental 
resource. This exemption applies to activities intended for information gathering that 
may lead to an action that a public agency has not yet approved. Consistent with this 
exemption, the proposed temporary lighting installation will provide an opportunity to 
obtain information on its compatibility in terms of brightness and color with the City’s 
Historical District and with adopted lighting standards.  
 
The CEQA Guidelines for Categorical Exemption §15301 includes minor alteration of 
existing public or private facilities involving no or negligible expansion of use beyond 
the existing use. Consistent with this exemption, the addition of temporary lights over 
Lower Commercial Street will not expand any of the existing uses, and will merely 
provide additional safety lighting and ambiance to the existing uses.   
 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Not applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:    
1. October 7, 2016 letter from the Nevada City Chamber of Commerce 
2. Resolution 2014-44 – Standards for Temporary Lighting Within the Historical 

District 

44



45



46



47



48



49



50


	1-REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 11.09.16.pdf
	3A-1 Notice of Completion - Washington County Relief Hill Rd Pressure Imp
	3A-2 Reso & Exhibit A - Relief Hill Rd Pressure Improvements.Washington Co
	3B-1 Interim Water and WWTP Staffing
	3B-2 Fishers Amendment No. 2
	4A-1 Minutes 10 26 2016 Draft
	4B-1 Minutes 10 18 2016 Draft
	5A-1 2016 Strategic Objectives Status Update
	5A-2 Nevada City GRID 8-16-Revised 11092016
	5B-1 stfrpt Tribute Trail Nomenclature
	5B-2 TTnomenclature info
	5B-3 TTnomenclaturemap
	8A-1 Wild and Scenic Film Festival Street Closure Request
	8A-2 Wild and Scenic Application
	8B-1 Hotel Incentive Program 11092016
	8B-2 Exhibit A - Hotel Incentive Programs in Other CA Communities
	8C-1 Homelessness Report 11092016
	8C-2 Homeless Plan - Research Phase
	8D-1 Commercial Street Lights Pilot Project
	8D-2 Chamber Proposal-Lighting
	8D-3 Resolution 2014-14



